
Final

CARSON CITY AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, June 26, 2024 – 5:30 P.M. 

Public Meeting at:
Carson City Airport Terminal 

2600 E. College Parkway 
Carson City, Nevada 

This Agenda Prepared by Corey Jenkins, Airport Manager 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

C. APPROVAL   OF THE   MINUTES   OF PAST   MEETINGS   OF THE AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY. 

 
D. MODIFICATION OF THE AGENDA.  The Chairman reserves the right to modify 

the agenda in order to most effectively process the agenda items. Items may be taken out 
of order; Items may be combined for consideration by the Authority; Items may be pulled 
or removed from the agenda at any time. 

E. PUBLIC COMMENT. Members of the public who wish to address the Airport 
Authority may speak on agendized and non-agendized matters related to the Airport. 
Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person or topic. If your item requires 
extended discussion, please request the Chairman to calendar the matter for a future 
Airport Authority meeting. 

 
1. The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written 

submission to the following email address: Manager@flycarsoncity.com. For 
inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, your public comment must 
include your full name & address and be submitted via email by not later than 5:00 
p.m. the day before the meeting. The Carson City Airport Authority values your 
input.  Members of the public who wish to provide live public comment may do so 
during the designated public comment periods, indicated on the agenda in person. 

******************************************************************************* 
 

F. AIRPORT ENGINEER’S REPORT (Non-Action Item). 
 
 
 
 



Final

G. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF RIGHT OF 
ENTRY FOR SW GAS TO DEVELOP UTILITY EASEMENT FOR THE 
UTILITIES LOCATED IN THE LEASE PARCEL HELD BY ARROWHEAD 
TENANT, LLC AND SURROUNDING AREAS.

Staff Summary: The proposed action is to allow Southwest Gas access to the 
airport to develop a utility easement for the Arrowhead Tenant, LLC hangar 
development. They will complete the necessary engineering, planning and survey 
for the easement.  

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  CONSIDERATION FOR PAY 
INCREASE FOR AIRPORT STAFF. 
 
Staff Summary: Airport Staff performance reviews have been completed by the 
Airport Manager.  All staff exceeded expectations.  The recommended pay 
increase for staff who are still in the probationary period is 3.2%.  The 
recommended pay increase for staff who are out of probationary period is 5%.  
All recommended increases fit within the 2024/2025 budget.  

 
I. AIRPORT MANAGER’S REPORT (Non-Action Item). 

J. LEGAL COUNSEL’S REPORT (Non-Action Item). 

K. TREASURER’S REPORT (Non-Action Item). 

L. REPORT FROM AUTHORITY MEMBERS (Non-Action Item). 
1. Status review of projects 
2. Internal communications and administrative matters 
3. Correspondence to the Authority 
4. Status reports and comments from the members of the Authority 

 
M. PUBLIC COMMENT.  Members of the public who wish to address the Airport 

Authority may speak about items discussed on the agenda related to the Airport. 
Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person or topic.  If your item requires 
extended discussion, please request the Chairman to calendar the matter for a future 
Airport Authority meeting. 

N. AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT REGULAR MEETING (Non-Action Item). 

O. ACTION ON ADJOURNMENT.

 
 



Final

*     *     *     *    * 

DELIVERED (via E-Mail) to the FOLLOWING LOCATIONS for POSTING by 9am, June 21, 2024 

The Carson City Airport Website https://flycarsoncity.com/ 

State of Nevada Public Notice Website https://notice.nv.gov

Airport Terminal Building 
 

2600 College Parkway
Carson City, NV 

Mountain West Aviation 2101 Arrowhead Dr.
Carson City, NV 

Stellar Aviation of Carson City, LLC 2640 College Parkway
Carson City, NV

~ Distribution made to others per request and as noted on the Airport Authority Distribution List ~
 

Supporting materials will be posted to the Carson City Airport website www.flycarsoncity.com as 
available, and can be obtained upon request from the Airport Manager, 2600 E. College Parkway #6, 
Carson City, NV

NOTE:   The Airport Authority is pleased to make reasonable accommodations for the public who are 
disabled and wish to attend this meeting.  If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the 
Airport Authority at (775) 841-2255 or cjenkins@flycarsoncity.com

Notice: NRS 241.020(3)(b) states that a request for mailed notice of meetings automatically lapses six 
months after it is made to the public body.  A separate written request is not required for each meeting 
although requests are limited to six months at a time. 

THE CARSON CITY AIRPORT AUTHORITY ENCOURAGES WRITTEN COMMENTS FROM THE 
PUBLIC. Comments should be addressed to the Airport Manager, and sent to the following address: 

Carson City Airport Authority 2600 E. College Parkway #6, Carson City, Nevada 89706 
 



DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting  

Carson City Airport Authority (CCAA)
May 21, 2024  5:30 PM 

 Carson City Airport Terminal 
2600 E. College Parkway  

Carson City, Nevada 
  

 
 

 

Page 1 
 
 

      
       Authority Members 

 Chair  Tim Puliz   Vice Chair  Harlow Norvell 
 Treasurer  Jon Rogers  Member  Curtis Horton   

  Member  Paul Hamilton  Member  Karl Hutter 
   Member  Michael Golden 
 
 

                                    Staff  
Steve Tackes  Airport Counsel 
Rick Lee  Airport Operations and Maintenance Supervisor 
Briana Munoz  Public Meetings Clerk  

  
NOTE:  A recording of these proceedings, the B written comments or 
documentation provided to the recording secretary during the meeting are public record.  These materials are on 
file in the Clerk-  
 
Audio recordings and the meeting minutes of the Carson City Airport Authority meetings are available on 
https://www.carson.org/government/city-meetings.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM  

(5:30:34)  Chairperson Puliz called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

(5:31:28)  Roll was called, and a quorum was present.  

 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

(5:31:35)  Led by Chair Puliz. 

Attendee Name Status Arrived 
Chairperson Tim Puliz Present  
Vice Chair Harlow Norvell Absent  
Treasurer Jon Rogers Present 5:41 p.m. 
Member Michael Golden Present  
Member Paul Hamilton Present  
Member Curtis Horton Present   
Member Karl Hutter Present  



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              May 21, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 2 
 
 

C. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PAST MEETINGS OF THE AIRPORT AUTHORITY. 

(5:31:55)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item and entertained comments, changes, and/or a motion to approve 
the minutes of the April 17, 2024 meeting.  

(5:31:59)  MOTION: Member Golden moved to approve the minutes of the March 20, 2024 meeting. 
Member Hutter seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0-0. 

 

 

 

 

 

D. MODIFICATION OF THE AGENDA. 

None. 

E. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(5:32:32)  Chairperson Puliz entertained public comments; however, none were forthcoming.  

F.  

(5:33:35)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Wood Rodgers Representative Brian Martinezmoles presented 
his report, which is incorporated into the record.  

(5:34:37)  Chair Puliz referenced an update on ongoing projects from Nadine Burgard of Armstrong Consultants, 
which is incorporated into the record.   

G. CONSENT AGENDA 

(5:34:56)  Chair Puliz introduced the items, entertained requests to pull items from the Consent Agenda, and 
entertained a motion. 

(5:35:44)  MOTION: Member Golden moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Member 
Hamilton seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0-0.  

 

 

 

RESULT:  APPROVED (5-0-0) 
MOVER:  Golden 
SECONDER:  Hutter 
AYES:   Puliz, Golden, Hamilton, Horton, Hutter 
NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS None 
ABSENT:  Norvell, Rogers 



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              May 21, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 3 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 1.  FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: REVIEW AND DISCUSS  

CHANGE, IF ANY, TO THE TENTATIVE FY 2024-2025 FINAL BUDGET AND ADOPTION OF THE 
RESULTING FINAL BUDGET  

 2.  FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVE A LEASE AMENDMENT FOR 
AT&T WIRELESS SERVICES, INC. FOR THE ADDITION AND MODIFICATOIN OF EQUIPMENT.  
  

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 1.  FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVE THE PROPOSED PARCEL 
MAP AND THE SEPARATION OF THE FIRE DEPARTMENT LAND (PARCEL 2) FROM THE 
AIRPORT PARCEL (PARCEL 1). 

(5:37:03)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Mr. Tackes referenced the Board Memo and the Supporting 
Materials, all of which are incorporated into the record.  

(5:38:33)  MOTION: Member Hutter moved to approve the proposed parcel map and the separation of the 
Fire Department parcel from the Airport. Member Golden seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0-0.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

(5:39:14)  Mr. Tackes responded to clarifying questions regarding access requirements for the Fire Department to 
the Airport. 

RESULT:  APPROVED (5-0-0) 
MOVER:  Hutter 
SECONDER:  Golden 
AYES:   Puliz, Golden, Hamilton, Horton, Hutter 
NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS None 
ABSENT:  Norvell, Rogers 

RESULT:  APPROVED (5-0-1) 
MOVER:  Golden 
SECONDER:  Hamilton 
AYES:   Puliz, Golden, Hamilton, Horton, Hutter 
NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS None 
ABSENT:  Norvell, Rogers 



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              May 21, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 4 
 
 

 2.  FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVE A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION (FAA) FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF FAA WEATHER CAMERAS ON THE AIRPORT OWNED AUTOMATED 
WEATHER OBSERVATION SYSTEM (AWOS) TOWER. 

(5:40:38)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Chair Puliz referenced the Board Memo and the Memorandum 
of Understanding between the Federal Aviation Administration and Carson City Airport Authority, both of which 
are incorporated into the record. Discussion ensued regarding whether the cameras were stationary cameras. In 
response to Member Golden, Chair Puliz confirmed that the cost would be undertaken by the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA). 

(5:42:29)  MOTION: Member Golden moved to approve the proposed Memorandum of Understanding 
with the FAA for the installation of FAA Weather cameras on the AWOS tower. Member Hamilton seconded 
the motion. The motion carried 6-0-0. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 3.  FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVE THE AGREEMENT TO 
EXTEND TIME AND AVOID LEASE TERMINATION WITH CARSON TAHOE EXECUTIVE, LLC 
(CTE). 

(5:42:58)  Chair Puliz introduced the item. Mr. Tackes referenced the Staff Report and the Agreement to Extend 
Time; Avoid Lease Termination with Carson Tahoe Executive (CTE), LLC, both of which are incorporated into the 
record. Mr. Tackes responded to clarifying questions.  

(5:47:40)  Member Golden highlighted the importance of meeting the designated timeframes. In response to 
Member Hutter s question, Mr. Tackes explained that the process involved modifying the lease area, possibly 
requiring a lot line adjustment. Mr. Tackes responded to clarifying questions.  

(5:50:58)  Chair Puliz requested that Bruce Carrade of CTE provide an overview for the Authority. Mr. Carrade 
said he was requesting an additional six months on the lease, for submitting drawings and allowing a year for 
construction. He mentioned that updates would be provided to Mr. Jenkins and noted plans to be on the Airport 
Authority meeting agenda in June 2024. Mr. Carrade added that the project would remain within the same square 
footage, avoiding the need for a new appraisal and maintain the current rate. Mr. Carrade responded to clarifying 

RESULT:  APPROVED (6-0-0) 
MOVER:  Golden 
SECONDER:  Hamilton 
AYES:   Puliz, Rogers, Golden, Hamilton, Horton, Hutter 
NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS None 
ABSENT:  Norvell 



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              May 21, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 5 
 
 

questions regarding the timeline for the plans and completion of construction, confirming one year for construction 
and six months for planning.  

(5:55:43)  Member Golden expressed concerns with potential delays with the project s completion and Mr. Carrade 
noted that a $25,000 deposit had been paid, indicating commitment to the project. In response to Treasurer Rogers, 
Mr. Carrade clarified who would bear the responsibility for appraisal costs. Mr. Tackes added that the cost would 
be lower as it involves a reappraisal.   

(5:59:07)  MOTION: Member Horton moved to approve the agreement to extend time and avoid lease 
termination with Carson Tahoe Executive. Member Hutter seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0-0. 

 

 

 

 

 

 I.  

(5:59:33)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Mr. Lee provided the Airport Manager s Report, on behalf of 
Mr. Jenkins, which is incorporated into the record. He provided an overview on the Fuel Flowage and Airport 
Operations reports, both of which are incorporated into the record. Additionally, Mr. Lee went over the Results of 
Additional Operations/Airfield Maintenance Staff and Modified Work Schedule, which is incorporated into the 
record. Mr. Lee responded to clarifying questions regarding molding.  

J.  

(6:11:55)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Mr. Tackes mentioned that the Carson Medical Group plans to 
begin using their new facility near the Airport next month.  

K.   

(6:12:37)  Chairperson Puliz introduced the item. Treasurer Rogers expressed appreciation for the approval of the 
final budget. He added that there were no changes between the final and preliminary budgets. Treasurer Rogers 
mentioned the addition of Kim Pilant as the Airport s administrative assistant.   

L. REPORT FROM AUTHORITY MEMBERS 

1. STATUS REVIEW OF PROJECTS 

2. INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

RESULT:  APPROVED (6-0-0) 
MOVER:  Horton 
SECONDER:  Hutter 
AYES:   Puliz, Rogers, Golden, Hamilton, Horton, Hutter 
NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS None 
ABSENT:  Norvell 



Draft Minutes Carson City Airport Authority                              May 21, 2024
 

 
 

 

Page 6 
 
 

3. CORRESPONDENCE TO THE AUTHORITY 

4. STATUS REPORTS AND COMMENTS FROM THE MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY 

(6:14:05)  Chairperson Puliz entertained Member reports; however, none were forthcoming. 

M. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(6:14:11)  Chairperson Puliz entertained public comments.  Mr. Carrade commented on the Results of the 
Additional Operations/Airfield Maintenance Staff and Modified Work Schedule report, noting that it was very 
thorough  and included a variety of projects.  

N. AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

(6:14:37)  Chairperson Puliz entertained requests for agenda items for the next CCAA meeting; however, none 
were forthcoming.  

O. ACTION ON ADJOURNMENT 

(6:14:48)  MOTION: Chairperson Puliz adjourned the meeting at 6:14 p.m. 

The Minutes of the May 21, 2024 Carson City Airport Authority meeting are so approved on this 26th day of June 
2024.  



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo

CCAA BOARD MEMO Agenda Item: G-1

BOARD MEMO  2024-17   Meeting Date: June 26, 2024 

Agenda Title: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF 
RIGHT OF ENTRY FOR SW GAS TO DEVELOP UTILITY EASEMENT FOR 
THE UTILITIES LOCATED IN THE LEASE PARCEL HELD BY 
ARROWHEAD TENANT, LLC AND SURROUNDING AREAS.

Staff Summary: The proposed action is to allow Southwest Gas access to the 
airport to develop a utility easement for the Arrowhead Tenant, LLC hangar 
development.  They will complete the necessary engineering, planning and survey 
for the easement.

Agenda Action: Formal Action/Motion  Time Requested: 0 Minutes

Proposed Motion

I move to approve the Right of Entry for SW Gas.

CCAA’S Strategic Goal

Maintain airport infrastructure in top condition.

Previous Action and Executive Summary

November 16, 2022 (Item H-2) – The Carson City Airport Authority (CCAA)
approved the ground lease to Arrowhead Tenant, LLC for construction of aircraft 
storage hangars.

December 15, 2022 (Item 8.A) – The Carson City Board of Supervisors approved 
the ground lease to Arrowhead Tenant, LLC for construction of aircraft storage 
hangars.



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Southwest Gas requires a Right of Entry to perform the required work for the 
Arrowhead Tenant, LLC gas utilities.  The proposed Right of Entry shows that the 
utilities will be bored from under Taxiway Bravo, but the developer has learned 
that this approach will not work because they are not able to locate the utilities far 
enough south.  The new solution will be a trench across Bravo.  The proposed 
Right of Entry still needs to be approved so they are able to do the work required to 
produce an easement for the utilities.      
 
Financial Information 

Is there a fiscal impact? 
No    Yes 

 
If yes, account name/number & amount: 
 
General Fund/ Federal Share: 
  
Is it currently budgeted? 
 
Alternatives 

Do not approve. 
 
Board Action Taken: 

Motion: ____________________________ 1) _________________________     
2) _________________________      

 
Aye/Nay 

           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
___________________________ 
   (Vote Recorded By) 



APN: 005-011-01

    
If Recorded: 
Recording Requested By/Return To: 
Southwest Gas Corporation
P.O. Box 1190
Carson City, Nevada 89702-1190

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX $
(  ) Computed on full value of property 
conveyed.
(  ) Computed on full value less liens 
& encumbrances remaining thereon at 
time of sale.

 

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Signature of individual determing tax

This form is used to grant access and acquire land rights for installation of pipeline(s) and 
appurtenances when an easement is not granted prior to start of construction. 

Prepared By CPH2 Reviewed By TLG1

Sec. 4 T 15N R 20E Meridian Mount Diablo 

County Carson City State NV 

W.R. No. 4786736 W.O. No. 20144

I (We), Carson City, a consolidated municipality of the State of Nevada

   , 

For the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned, referred to as Grantor(s), grants and conveys unto 
SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION, a California corporation, referred to as Grantee, its 
successors, assigns, licensees, and invitees as reasonably necessary and convenient to effect 
the purpose of this instrument, permission to enter in and upon Grantor(s) property for the 
installation and maintenance of a natural gas pipeline or pipelines and appurtenances 
(“facilities”), and for temporary work space for the duration of the construction activities, across, 
over, under and through the following described property (“Project Area”): 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT(S) "A" & "B"
Grantor(s) further agree(s) that no buildings, structures, fences, or trees shall be placed within 
5 feet of the facilities; nor other grants or uses made that interfere with Grantee’s 
facilities or with Grantee’s rights under this grant, unless otherwise authorized in advance in 
writing by Grantee.  Grantee agrees to restore the Project Area to reasonably the same condition 
that existed before the work was performed and to pay for all direct damages, if any, sustained 
to the above-described Project Area as a result of the negligence of Grantee and/or their agents 
and/or contractors related to the above-described installation.  

 

Form 335.09 (05/2016) 581-Microsoft Word                                             

RIGHT-OF-ENTRY 



This Right-of-Entry shall run with the land and be binding upon Grantor’s successors, heirs, and 
assigns. 
 
The undersigned hereby affirms that there is no Social Security Number contained in this 
document submitted for recording.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said Right-of-Entry unto Grantee, its successors, assigns, and permitted 
licensees and invitees, together with all rights granted hereby. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representative of the Grantor(s) has  

executed this Right-of-Entry this   day of    , 20  . 

 
      

 

Grantor:   

      
 

Grantor:   

 

Form 335.09 (05//2016)  581 - Microsoft Word                                                                

W.R. No. 4786736 W.O. No. 20144

Page 2 of 7     APN: 005-011-01 

Upon completion of the facilities constructed pursuant to this Right-of-Entry, and provided that 
a road or right of way dedication, map or other document has not been recorded or established 
providing Grantee easement rights acceptable to Grantee, Grantor(s) hereby agree(s) to sign 
and execute Grantee’s standard easement form describing the perpetual easement area to be 
retained over said Project Area within 90 days of receipt of said easement form. 
 
Should Grantor(s) fail(s) to execute Grantee’s standard easement form within 90 days of 
receipt of Grantee’s written request, Grantee reserves the right to record this Right-of-Entry, 
whereby the terms and conditions of said Right-of-Entry shall remain in full force and effect for 
the perpetual right of access, operation, maintenance, replacement, removal or abandonment 
of the facilities; in whole or in part.  



Page 3 of  7         APN: 005-011-01 

W.R. No. 4786736 W.O. No. 20144

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF     )  

)  

COUNTY OF )

On  , before me, ,
                                (here insert name of the officer)

a notary public, personally appeared   

 , 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) 
is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed 
the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the 
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of    
that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.  

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature  (Seal)

 
Form 335.09 (05/2016) 581 - Microsoft Word                                                             



EXHIBIT �A� 
SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 

RIGHT OF ENTRY 
WR# 4786736 

 
APN: 005-011-01 (TAXIWAY BRAVO) 

THAT PORTION OF THE EAST HALF (1/2) OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, 
RANGE 20 EAST, M.D.M., CARSON CITY COUNTY, NEVADA, DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND AS DESCRIBED AS EXHIBIT �A� IN CARSON CITY AIRPORT 
LEASE AGREEMENT IN OFFICIAL RECORDS OF CARSON CITY COUNTY, NEVADA, 
IN DOCUMENT # 537361 ON DECEMBER 20, 2022. 
 
APN: 005-021-13 (3909 TAXIWAY BRAVO) 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND AS DESCRIBED IN AMENDMENT TO CARSON CITY AIRPORT 
LEASE AGREEMENT IN OFFICIAL RECORDS OF CARSON CITY COUNTY, NEVADA, 
IN DOCUMENT # 536842 ON NOVEMBER 18, 2022. 
 
APN: 005-021-14 (3929 TAXIWAY BRAVO HANGER A) 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND AS DESCRIBED AS EXHIBIT B-1 IN CARSON CITY AIRPORT 
LEASE AGREEMENT IN OFFICIAL RECORDS OF CARSON CITY COUNTY, NEVADA, 
IN DOCUMENT # 537361 ON DECEMBER 20, 2022. 

APN: 005-021-15 (3959 TAXIWAY BRAVO HANGER B) 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND AS DESCRIBED AS EXHIBIT B-2 IN CARSON CITY AIRPORT 
LEASE AGREEMENT IN OFFICIAL RECORDS OF CARSON CITY COUNTY, NEVADA, 
IN DOCUMENT # 537361 ON DECEMBER 20, 2022. 
 
APN: 005-021-16 (3989 TAXIWAY BRAVO HANGER C) 

A PARCEL OF LAND AS DESCRIBED AS EXHIBIT B-3 IN CARSON CITY AIRPORT 
LEASE AGREEMENT IN OFFICIAL RECORDS OF CARSON CITY COUNTY, NEVADA, 
IN DOCUMENT # 537361 ON DECEMBER 20, 2022. 



TAXIWAY BRAVO

APN 00511109

F
U

E
L

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

PROP. 24'' SDPROP. 24'' SDPROP. 24'' SDPROP. 24'' SDPROP. 24'' SD

PROP. 24'' SD
OP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SSPROP. 8'' SS

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

WW

WWWWWW

WW

WWWWW

8
" 

S
D

8
" 

S
D

8
" 

S
D

8"
 S

D
8

" 
S

D

H
A

N
G

E
R

 B

H
A

N
G

E
R

 A

H
A

N
G

E
R

 C
3

98
9

 T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 B
R

A
V

O

3
95

9
 T

A
X

IW
A

Y
 B

R
A

V
O

3
92

9
 T

A
X

IW
A

Y
 B

R
A

V
O

2980 LA MOTTE DR

H
-2

3

H
-2

2

H
-2

1

H
-2

0

H
-1

9

H
-1

8

H
-1

7

E
M

S

A
P

N
 0

0
5

0
2

11
3

E
M

S

E
M

S

E
M

S

E
M

S E
M

S

A
P

N
 0

0
5

0
2

11
4

A
P

N
 0

0
5

0
2

11
5

A
P

N
 0

0
5

0
2

11
6

APN 00501161

5
7

28
'

5
7

08
'

5
7

18
'

5
6

98
'

P
H

O
N

E
:

P
H

O
N

E
:

D
A

T
E

A
P

P
V

D
. 

B
Y

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 C
O

N
T

A
C

T

S
H

E
E

T
 N

O
.

D
W

N
. 

B
Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 R

E
P

.

S
C

A
LE

C
H

K
D

. B
Y

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
A

P
P

V
D

.

O
F

P
H

O
N

E
:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
/T

E
C

H
N

IC
IA

N

R

IS
O

L
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
A

T
L

A
S

 O
R

 T
IL

E
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

JO
B

 T
Y

P
E

R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 W

R
 N

O
.S

P
E

R
M

IT
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 M
A

O
P

: 

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 M
O

P
: 

H
P

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N

F
E

E
D

E
R

T
R

A
N

S
. 

B
Y

 D
E

F

T
R

A
N

S
 >

 2
0%

b
el

o
w

.
K

n
o

w
 w

h
a

t's
  

  
b

e
fo

re
 y

o
u

 d
ig

.
C

al
l

R

W
R

 N
O

.

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 M
A

O
P

: 

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 M
O

P
: 

S
o

u
th

w
e

st
 G

a
s 

C
o

rp
o

ra
ti

o
n

 C
o

n
fi

d
en

ti
a

l a
n

d
 P

ro
p

ri
e

ta
ry

 In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

F
or

 
R

e
fe

re
nc

e 
O

n
ly

 
- 

N
ot

 
V

a
lid

 
fo

r 
Li

ne
 

Lo
ca

tin
g

 
P

ur
po

se
s.

 
N

o
re

pr
e

se
nt

a
tio

n
 

or
 

w
a

rr
an

ty
 

is
 

m
a

de
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ad
eq

u
ac

y,
 

a
cc

u
ra

cy
 

o
r

co
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

o
f

th
e

 i
nf

o
rm

a
tio

n 
or

 d
e

pi
ct

io
ns

 s
h

ow
n

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

 p
ro

te
c

te
d

 f
ro

m
 f

u
rt

h
er

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e 

fe
d

er
al

 F
re

ed
o

m
 o

f
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 A

ct
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

ro
te

c
te

d
 C

ri
ti

c
al

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
A

ct
 o

f 
2

00
2,

 a
n

d
 N

ev
ad

a
 R

e
vi

s
ed

 S
ta

tu
te

s 
§

 2
3

9C
.

T
hi

s 
d

o
cu

m
en

t 
m

a
y 

n
ot

 b
e 

co
p

ie
d,

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

, 
or

 s
h

ar
e

d
 t

o 
a

n
y 

ot
h

er
p

er
so

n
 o

r 
e

nt
ity

 i
n

 a
ny

 m
a

nn
e

r 
o

r 
fo

rm
 w

ith
o

ut
 p

rio
r 

w
ri

tt
en

 c
o

ns
en

t 
of

S
o

ut
h

w
e

st
 G

as
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n
.

C
O

D
Y

 E
B

B
E

(7
75

) 
88

7
-2

8
42

D
A

N
IE

L
 P

A
C

E
(7

75
) 

88
7

-2
7

22

 
 

3
3

1
" 

=
 3

0'
0

5/
2

1
/2

0
2

4

IN
F

IN
IT

Y
X

2
4_

C
A

R
S

O
N

_
4

3

4
3

4
3

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
A

R
S

O
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
R

S
O

N
_0

3
x1

7
4

y1
6

20
x1

7
4

y1
6

18

D
IS

T
. 

24
S

4 
T

1
5N

 R
20

E
M

O
U

N
T

 D
IA

B
L

O

47
86

7
3

6

N
/A

N
B

M
C

 T
A

X
I 

W
A

Y
 B

R
A

V
O

,
C

A
R

S
O

N
 C

IT
Y

, 
N

V

C
JE

1
B

A
R

5

3
2'

 G

1
0'

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
E

S
M

T

7
' S

S

1
3 '

 S
D

2
8'

 W

3
1'

 W

7
'  S

S

1
3'

 S
D

28
' W

3
1'

 W

6' SD

1' SD

7' G

8
0'

 G

10' G

3
2'

 G
10' G

FLOW

FLOW

1
17

' G

7
3

' G

11
6'

 G

2
" 

P
E

8
10

0
 (

19
9

9)
W

R
# 

99
09

23
9

36
3

M
O

P
: 

43
 P

S
IG

2
" 

P
E

8
10

0
 (

20
0

5)

44
' G

1' G

2
E

1

2
A

1
85

'

2
C

2
A

1
65

'

2
D

2"
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

LS
 L

IS
T

 (
M

A
IN

)

C
O

D
E

D
E

S
IG

N
Q

T
Y

.
A

S
-B

U
IL

T
Q

T
Y

.
S

T
O

C
K

ID
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
E

A
M

C
O

A
T

IN
G

6
70

'
1

00
-5

1
0

3
2

" 
P

E
 8

40
0 

P
IP

E
, 

P
R

F
P

N
/A

N
/A

1
37

'
1

00
-8

9
9

9
4

" 
P

E
 S

LE
E

V
IN

G
, N

M
D

A
N

/A
N

/A

3
1

40
-2

8
8

5
2

" 
IP

S
, 

C
A

P
, E

L
E

C
T

R
O

F
U

S
IO

N
, M

T
D

N
/A

N
/A

2
1

40
-5

3
1

7
T

E
E

 E
F

 2
 I

P
S

 P
E

, 
4

71
0

 M
T

D
N

/A
N

/A

1
1

60
-8

1
7

1
2

" 
X

 2
" 

P
E

 T
A

P
 T

E
E

, C
N

T
I

N
/A

N
/A

5
1

70
-9

0
9

1
IN

S
U

L
A

T
IN

G
 S

K
ID

 A
S

S
E

M
B

LY
 2

" 
C

A
R

R
IE

R
 X

 4
" 

C
A

S
IN

G
,

A
D

V
P

N
/A

N
/A

2A 2B 2C 2D 2E 2F

1 
1/

4"
 A

N
D

 B
E

LO
W

, D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

 L
IS

T
 (

S
E

R
V

IC
E

)

C
O

D
E

D
E

S
IG

N
Q

T
Y

.
A

S
-B

U
IL

T
Q

T
Y

.
S

T
O

C
K

ID
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
E

A
M

C
O

A
T

IN
G

2
3'

1
0

1-
85

7
5

1
" 

P
E

 8
40

0 
P

IP
E

, 
P

R
F

P
N

/A
N

/A

3
1

6
0-

88
4

3
T

E
E

 T
A

P
 E

F
 2

X
1

 W
/IN

T
 1

1
00

 E
F

V
 M

T
D

N
/A

N
/A

3
8

50
-8

6
98

1
" 

P
E

 C
A

P
, 

R
W

L
Y

N
/A

N
/A

1A 1B 1C

2
A

4
3'

2
A

1
30

'

2' G

2
A

1
37

'
V

IA
 H

D
D

 B
O

R
E

2

2
D

T
O

 2
6

00
C

O
LL

E
G

E
 P

K
W

Y

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

T
IE

 N
E

W
 2

" 
P

E
8

4
00

 T
O

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 2
" 

P
E

8
10

0
, W

R
#

 9
9

0
92

3
93

6
3

 (
1

9
99

)

R
O

P
E

 N
E

W
 2

" 
P

E
8

4
00

 M
A

IN

R
O

P
E

 N
E

W
 2

" 
P

E
8

4
00

 M
A

IN

1 2 3

R

0
3

0
1

" 
=

 3
0'

95' G

75
' G

9
6

' G

P
R

O
P

. 1
5"

 S
D

3

5' G

8
8 '

 G

75' G

8
3'

 G

2
C

7
8 '

 G

1
B

1
B 1
B

2
C

87' G
1

C
1

A
8

'

1
C

1
A

3
'

1
C

1
A

1
2'

3' G

P
R

O
F

IL
E

 3
A

H
O

R
IZ

.: 
N

T
S

  
V

E
R

T
.: 

N
T

S
V

E
R

IF
Y

 D
E

P
T

H
 O

F
 A

LL
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
D

E
P

T
H

S
/E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

 S
H

O
W

N
 T

O
 T

O
P

 O
F

 P
IP

E

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 G
R

A
D

E

3' G

6
5'

10'

6
'

6
'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 2
" 

P
E

 M
A

IN
W

IT
H

IN
 4

" 
P

E
 S

LE
E

V
E

6
5'

7
'

T
A

X
I 

W
A

Y
 B

R
A

V
O

2" PE HDD BORE EXIT

EXIT ANGLE = 10°

2" PE HDD BORE ENTRY

ENTRY ANGLE = 10°

TIE-IN TO PROPOSED 2" PE

TIE-IN TO PROPOSED 2" PE

6'
 X

 6
'

B
O

R
E

P
IT

6
' X

 6
'

B
O

R
E

 P
IT

M
A

X
 B

O
R

E
 P

IT
D

E
P

T
H

 O
F

 5
'

M
A

X
 B

O
R

E
 P

IT
D

E
P

T
H

 O
F

 5
'

6
' X

 6
' B

O
R

E
 P

IT

3A
3

3A
3

4
00

.0
' B

E
N

D
 R

A
D

IU
S

6
' X

 6
' B

O
R

E
 P

IT

4"
 P

E
 S

L
E

E
V

E

2
B

1
37

'

2
A

1
85

'

23' EOP

PR
O

PO
SED

 1
0'

 S
W

G
 E

ASEM
EN

T

PROPOSED 10' SWG EASEMENT

PROPOSED 10' SWG EASEMENT







































































____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo

CCAA BOARD MEMO Agenda Item: H-1

BOARD MEMO  2024-18 Meeting Date: June 26, 2024 

Agenda Title: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:
CONSIDERATION FOR PAY INCREASE FOR AIRPORT STAFF.

Staff Summary: Airport Staff performance reviews have been completed by the 
Airport Manager.  All staff exceeded expectations.  The recommended pay 
increase for staff who are still in the probationary period is 3.2%.  The 
recommended pay increase for staff who are out of probationary period is 5%.  All 
recommended increases fit within the 2024/2025 budget.

Agenda Action: Formal Action/Motion Time Requested: 15 Minutes

Proposed Motion

I move to approve the pay increase for Airport Staff. 

CCAA’S Strategic Goal

Maintain airport infrastructure in top condition.
Support economic activity in the region.

Previous Action and Executive Summary

There have been many recent changes in Airport Staff over the past couple of 
years.  Now that there are no planned staff changes, it would be ideal to execute 
staff raises at the beginning of the new fiscal year annually.  This will allow for the 
budgeting process to determine what the raise value will be each year and for staff 
performance reviews to be completed to determine if each employee will be 
eligible for the raise based on merit.      



____________________________________________________________________________
Board Memo 

Financial Information

Is there a fiscal impact? 
No    Yes 

 
If yes, account name/number & amount:  
 
General Fund 3099 
Annual Salary Increase: $6,106.44 
Annual Retirement Increase: $1,068.63 

General Fund/ Federal Share: 
  
Is it currently budgeted? Yes 
 
Alternatives 

Do not approve. 
Suggest a different rate. 

Board Action Taken: 

Motion: ____________________________ 1) _________________________     
2) _________________________      

 
Aye/Nay 

           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
           _______ 
___________________________ 
   (Vote Recorded By) 



June 26, 2024 

Carson City Airport Manager’s Report Prepared by Corey Jenkins 

Managers’ Report

Crack Seal Project
o The connector between Bravo and Delta and a small section along Carson 

Executive Hangar Association have been completed. 
o We will be prioritizing the next pavement projects based on available funds and 

areas of highest priority.  
 ACIP Meetings and Planning 

o Coffman and Associates has prepared a letter to send to the FAA providing them 
with the data supporting the runway extension from the Master Plan and Letters 
of Support. 

o We have requested a follow-up meeting with the FAA. 
o We have not received a response from the FAA.   

 The final budget. 
o The final budget was accepted by the State. 

 Carson City Chamber Leadership Institute
o On our final day, we got a tour of all the open spaces around Carson City.  We 

also toured some of the historical sites.   
o I have graduated from the Carson City Chamber Leadership Institute

 Aircraft accident 
o There was an aircraft accident. 
o 911 was called by a witness and they also called airport staff right after.
o The fire department responded and arrived shortly after airport staff were on the 

scene.  There was no injury or risk of fire, so after they took a report, they turned 
the incident back over to airport staff.

o The Sheriff Department also responded and took a report.
o Airport staff were limited due to a sick leave call out but was not a problem and 

the recovery was smooth.   
o The runway was closed for 1.5 hours. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Fuel Flowage

Total
 Self-Serve Full-Service Total Combined % Change 

Month 100LL Jet A 100LL Jet A Gallons Fuel Flowage Fee Annual Change 
January-24 5932 1389 2655 10751 20727  $  1,036.36 97%

February-24 6355 637 1343 13511 21847 $  1,092.34 12%
March-24 7206 353 2737 13374.9 23670  $  1,183.51 52%
April-24 9776 334 3489 8998 22598  $  1,129.89 5%
May-24 10401 1540 4241 28959 45141 $  2,257.05 57%
June-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%
July-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%

August-24 0 0 0 0 0 $               - -100%
September-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%

October-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%
November-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%
December-24 0 0 0 0 0  $               -    -100%

Aircraft Operations

2024 ADS-B Airport Operations

Month Arrivals Departures
Total 

Operations
Annual 
Change 

January-24 1457 1483 2940 32%
February-24 1295 1265 2560 -27%

March-24 1238 1242 2480 0%
April-24 4312 4312 8624 68%
May-24 4251 4261 8512 62%
June-24 0 0 0 -100%
July-24 0 0 0 -100%

August-24 0 0 0 -100%
September-24 0 0 0 -100%

October-24 0 0 0 -100%
November-24 0 0 0 -100%
December-24 0 0 0 -100%

Total Annual 12553 12563 25116 -60%





Carson City Airport Authority-2
Balance Sheet Comparison

As of May 31, 2024

Accrual Basis  Friday, June 14, 2024 12:41 PM GMT-07:00   1/2

TOTAL

AS OF MAY 31, 2024 AS OF MAY 31, 2023 (PY)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

1075 LGIP-Deferred 419,449.32 398,833.60

1077 LGIP- General Fund 1,607,661.63 1,237,407.83

3099 Gen. Fund #1162 305,980.52 374,097.10

3101 Deferred Lease #8249 0.00 0.00

3102 Gate Card #5242 0.00 0.00

3199 Petty Cash 100.00 100.00

6.30.20 Audit Adustment 0.00 0.00

Total Bank Accounts $2,333,191.47 $2,010,438.53

Accounts Receivable

2000 Accounts Receivable - Operating 341,207.92 285,785.59

Total Accounts Receivable $341,207.92 $285,785.59

Other Current Assets

1499 Undeposited Funds 18,893.02 22,500.45

2001 AR offset -19,337.00

2010 Due From Other Government 389,578.87 98,396.87

2010.1 Audit Adjustment to AR -332,044.00 1,019.00

2011 Accrued Interest Receivable 6,252.37 1,090.37

2020 Grants Receivable-CY 0.00 0.00

2021 Grants Receivable AIP33 0.00 0.00

2100 Prepaid Expenses 1,000.00

CTE Reimbursement Funds -37,935.00

Grumman HU-16C Lien 0.00 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $26,408.26 $123,006.69

Total Current Assets $2,700,807.65 $2,419,230.81

Fixed Assets

2120 land 146,542.03 146,542.03

2125 Machinery & Equipment 750,566.73 703,678.73

2126 Fencing 911,661.46 911,661.46

2130 Vehicle 807,877.35 149,733.35

2198 Accumulated Depreciation -466,021.36 -357,012.36

2201 Tractor 153,046.00 70,924.00

Total Fixed Assets $2,303,672.21 $1,625,527.21

Other Assets

2300 Provided for LT Obligations 271,786.33 139,013.33

2305 NPV of Airport Leases 7,242,012.00 5,369,789.00



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Balance Sheet Comparison

As of May 31, 2024

Accrual Basis  Friday, June 14, 2024 12:41 PM GMT-07:00   2/2

TOTAL

AS OF MAY 31, 2024 AS OF MAY 31, 2023 (PY)

2810 Pension Requirement 415,612.04 207,162.04

Total Other Assets $7,929,410.37 $5,715,964.37

TOTAL ASSETS $12,933,890.23 $9,760,722.39

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

3000 Accounts Payable 128,084.84 52,481.78

Total Accounts Payable $128,084.84 $52,481.78

Credit Cards

6321 Home Depot 324.96 1,288.20

6328 NSB Credit Card  Rick 9053 1,226.97 766.16

6329 NSB CC Corey 9061 1,539.26 2,163.61

Total Credit Cards $3,091.19 $4,217.97

Other Current Liabilities

2101 Payroll Liability 2,137.83 790.52

2102 Accrued Compensated Absences 8,917.28 5,227.28

2115 Accrued Expenses 21,000.00 21,000.00

3030 Audit Adj to AP 4,102.00 686.00

3090 Pension Requirement-Liab 360,736.00 257,691.00

3271 Current Portion of LTD 12,734.00 12,734.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $409,627.11 $298,128.80

Total Current Liabilities $540,803.14 $354,828.55

Long-Term Liabilities

3085 Net Pension Liability 447,813.00 142,339.00

3100 Leases Advances 26,556.00 18,770.00

3110 Deferred Inflows- Leases 6,872,722.00 5,184,646.00

3200 Mayes-Lease Transactions 305,149.83 174,262.83

3250 Gonzalez Deferred Lease 232,855.89 234,065.53

3260 Goni Deferred Lease 0.00 0.00

6325 Tractor US Bank -13,243.00 0.00

Total Long-Term Liabilities $7,871,853.72 $5,754,083.36

Total Liabilities $8,412,656.86 $6,108,911.91

Equity

4200 Fund Balance 2,548,313.52 2,553,540.52

4999 Retained Earnings 1,711,652.24 811,044.02

4999.1 GWFS to Fund FS adjustments -38,223.00 -38,223.00

Net Income 299,490.61 325,448.94

Total Equity $4,521,233.37 $3,651,810.48

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $12,933,890.23 $9,760,722.39



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Budget vs. Actuals: CCAA Budget_FY24_P&L - FY24 P&L

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Saturday, June 15, 2024 04:57 PM GMT-07:00   1/4

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER 
BUDGET

% OF 
BUDGET

Income

5010 Real/Personal Property Tax

5010.1 Aircraft 191,383.08 210,000.00 -18,616.92 91.13 %

5010.2 Building 156,586.08 140,000.00 16,586.08 111.85 %

Total 5010 Real/Personal Property Tax 347,969.16 350,000.00 -2,030.84 99.42 %

5050 AIRPORT LEASES

5050H Hanger Lease 72,000.00 79,100.00 -7,100.00 91.02 %

5051 Land Leases 254,862.22 245,000.00 9,862.22 104.03 %

5052 Tower Leases 72,137.36 71,000.00 1,137.36 101.60 %

5053 Lease-Mayes 6,240.00 6,240.00 0.00 100.00 %

Total 5050 AIRPORT LEASES 405,239.58 401,340.00 3,899.58 100.97 %

5150 Tie Down Fees 9,551.00 9,000.00 551.00 106.12 %

5151 Gate Card Fees 1,934.92 900.00 1,034.92 214.99 %

5155 Parking Fees 643.86 200.00 443.86 321.93 %

5200 Committed-Fuel Flowage Fees 14,655.16 20,000.00 -5,344.84 73.28 %

5201 Committed-Jet Fuel Tax 1,676.55 4,000.00 -2,323.45 41.91 %

5250 Through the Fence Fees 7,200.00 -7,200.00

5300 Class II FBO Fees 8,250.00 12,000.00 -3,750.00 68.75 %

5402 Open House Income 4,250.00 10,000.00 -5,750.00 42.50 %

5404 Rock Materials Sales 62,338.86 40,000.00 22,338.86 155.85 %

5500 Interest Income 84,887.15 65,000.00 19,887.15 130.60 %

5998 Terminal Rental 500.00 -500.00

Total Income $941,396.24 $920,140.00 $21,256.24 102.31 %

GROSS PROFIT $941,396.24 $920,140.00 $21,256.24 102.31 %

Expenses

6019 Charitable Contribution 2,040.75 1,000.00 1,040.75 204.08 %

6165 Job Supplies 48.14 48.14

6169 Taxes & Licenses 280.00 280.00

6300 Operating Expenses

6000 Airport Engineering 3,000.00 3,000.00

6130 Dues 1,685.00 1,450.00 235.00 116.21 %

6135 Memberships 95.00 750.00 -655.00 12.67 %

6137 Conferences 785.00 2,500.00 -1,715.00 31.40 %

6170 SWAAAE BOD Travel 750.00 -750.00

6190 Office Expence-PC Software 5,246.20 1,000.00 4,246.20 524.62 %

6200 Office Expenses -PC Hardware 154.96 500.00 -345.04 30.99 %

6211 Meals and Entertainment 889.06 500.00 389.06 177.81 %

6218 Marketing and Website 1,526.98 1,526.98

6280 Open House Expense 1,229.51 10,000.00 -8,770.49 12.30 %

6369 Travel 512.96 500.00 12.96 102.59 %

Total 6300 Operating Expenses 15,124.67 17,950.00 -2,825.33 84.26 %

6301 Utilities



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Budget vs. Actuals: CCAA Budget_FY24_P&L - FY24 P&L

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Saturday, June 15, 2024 04:57 PM GMT-07:00   2/4

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER 
BUDGET

% OF 
BUDGET

6238 Stormwater Discharge Permit 4.06 4.06

6302 Phone &  Internet 3,370.51 3,500.00 -129.49 96.30 %

6303 Electric 15,736.92 12,000.00 3,736.92 131.14 %

6304 Gas 1,133.82 1,000.00 133.82 113.38 %

6305 Water 2,392.72 2,000.00 392.72 119.64 %

6306 Carson City Landfill 1,256.20 1,200.00 56.20 104.68 %

Total 6301 Utilities 23,894.23 19,700.00 4,194.23 121.29 %

6308 Office Expenses and Supplies 1,701.95 2,000.00 -298.05 85.10 %

6309 Legal 36,180.00 100,000.00 -63,820.00 36.18 %

6310 Security 3,595.90 4,000.00 -404.10 89.90 %

6311 CCAA printing 428.08 428.08

6312 Data Storage 603.82 400.00 203.82 150.96 %

6313 Insurance 7,784.00 13,000.00 -5,216.00 59.88 %

6314 Auditing 26,103.75 25,000.00 1,103.75 104.42 %

6314A Accounting/Bullis 16,595.00 18,000.00 -1,405.00 92.19 %

6314B Accounting/Tmcdbooks 9,760.00 28,800.00 -19,040.00 33.89 %

6315 Contract Services/Appraisals 6,000.00 -6,000.00

6316 Bank Charges/Square Chgs 627.36 350.00 277.36 179.25 %

6317 Airport Equipment Maintenance 17,903.73 15,000.00 2,903.73 119.36 %

6317.5 AWOS III Service Charges 7,464.90 6,000.00 1,464.90 124.42 %

6318 Facility Maintenance 6,938.72 8,000.00 -1,061.28 86.73 %

6319 Airfield Maintenance 27,196.35 30,000.00 -2,803.65 90.65 %

6319.5 Gate Maintenance 3,009.89 250.00 2,759.89 1,203.96 %

6319.51 Depreciation expense 85,000.00 -85,000.00

6350 Labor Expense

6351 Salaries 196,040.60 215,400.00 -19,359.40 91.01 %

6351.5 Overtime Budget (Airfield) 1,080.00 6,000.00 -4,920.00 18.00 %

6352 Healthcare 39,304.29 45,000.00 -5,695.71 87.34 %

6353 PERS Retirement Contribution 70,115.59 65,000.00 5,115.59 107.87 %

6354 Nevada Payroll 1,248.50 1,100.00 148.50 113.50 %

6355 Workers Compensation 4,638.15 7,400.00 -2,761.85 62.68 %

6356 State Unemployment Contri 2,100.00 -2,100.00

6357 Federal Quarterly Tax 500.00 -500.00

6363 Voya/Deferred Comp 420.00 420.00

6476 Uniforms 1,605.32 2,400.00 -794.68 66.89 %

Total 6350 Labor Expense 314,452.45 344,900.00 -30,447.55 91.17 %

6600 Bad Debt Transaction 1,650.00 1,650.00

9100 Interest Expense 527.98 527.98

QuickBooks Payments Fees 123.67 123.67

Total Expenses $524,035.34 $725,350.00 $ -201,314.66 72.25 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $417,360.90 $194,790.00 $222,570.90 214.26 %

Other Income



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Budget vs. Actuals: CCAA Budget_FY24_P&L - FY24 P&L

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Saturday, June 15, 2024 04:57 PM GMT-07:00   3/4

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER 
BUDGET

% OF 
BUDGET

5001 NDOT Grant Reimbursement 19,722.00 19,722.00

FAA AIP Grant Revenue

6035 AIP #36  Construct SRE Building

6035.1 6035 AIP #36  Construct SRE Building Revenue 1,640,625.00 -1,640,625.00

6035.2 6035 AIP #36  Construct SRE Building Expense -12,470.00 -
1,750,000.00

1,737,530.00 0.71 %

Total 6035 AIP #36  Construct SRE Building -12,470.00 -109,375.00 96,905.00 11.40 %

6036 AIP #37  Acquire Snow Removal Equipment 225.00 225.00

6036.1 AIP #37 Acquire Snow Removal Equipment Revenue 218,000.00 -218,000.00

6036.2 AIP #37 Acquire Snow Removal Equipment Expense -225.00 -218,000.00 217,775.00 0.10 %

Total 6036 AIP #37  Acquire Snow Removal Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00

6037 AIP #38  Install Approach Lighting Phase I 25,796.00 25,796.00

6040.1 AIP 41 - Relocate AWOS Revenue 19,722.00 19,722.00

6041 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF

6041.1 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF Rev 98,035.37 98,035.37

6041.2 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF 
Expense

-50,755.00 -50,755.00

Total 6041 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF 47,280.37 47,280.37

6042 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF

6042.1 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF 
Revenue

60,817.97 60,817.97

6042.2 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF 
Expense

-65,110.00 -65,110.00

Total 6042 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF -4,292.03 -4,292.03

6044 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building

6044.1 6044 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building Revenue 24,788.43 24,788.43

6044.2 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building Expense -67,876.50 -67,876.50

Total 6044 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building -43,088.07 -43,088.07

Total FAA AIP Grant Revenue 32,948.27 -109,375.00 142,323.27 -30.12 %

Total Other Income $52,670.27 $ -
109,375.00

$162,045.27 -48.16 %

Other Expenses

CCAA Funded Capital Projects

6400 Capital Project

6418 FOD Boss Purchase 6,949.00 7,200.00 -251.00 96.51 %

Total 6400 Capital Project 6,949.00 7,200.00 -251.00 96.51 %

6412 Terminal Entrance Hardscape 3,659.50 120,000.00 -116,340.50 3.05 %

6413 Taxiway Sign Panels 9,719.51 15,000.00 -5,280.49 64.80 %

6414 Terminal Building Architectural Renderings 12,892.25 12,892.25

6416 New Terminal Door Improvements with Access Control 7,556.24 7,556.24

6417 Aggregate To Improve Safety Areas (500 ft Test Area) 65,167.22 275,000.00 -209,832.78 23.70 %



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Budget vs. Actuals: CCAA Budget_FY24_P&L - FY24 P&L

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Saturday, June 15, 2024 04:57 PM GMT-07:00   4/4

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER 
BUDGET

% OF 
BUDGET

Total CCAA Funded Capital Projects 105,943.72 417,200.00 -311,256.28 25.39 %

Total Other Expenses $105,943.72 $417,200.00 $ -311,256.28 25.39 %

NET OTHER INCOME $ -
53,273.45

$ -
526,575.00

$473,301.55 10.12 %

NET INCOME $364,087.45 $ -
331,785.00

$695,872.45 -109.74 %



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Profit and Loss Comparison

July 2023 - May 2024

Accrual Basis  Friday, June 14, 2024 12:41 PM GMT-07:00   1/4

TOTAL

JUL 2023 - MAY 2024 JUL 2022 - MAY 2023 (PY)

Income

5010 Real/Personal Property Tax

5010.1 Aircraft 175,434.49 174,945.87

5010.2 Building 143,537.24 143,137.50

Total 5010 Real/Personal Property Tax 318,971.73 318,083.37

5050 AIRPORT LEASES

5050H Hanger Lease 66,000.00 10,901.14

5051 Land Leases 233,163.06 210,107.30

5052 Tower Leases 66,192.58 63,308.39

5053 Lease-Mayes 5,720.00 5,720.00

Total 5050 AIRPORT LEASES 371,075.64 290,036.83

5150 Tie Down Fees 8,838.00 9,225.59

5151 Gate Card Fees 1,934.92 525.22

5155 Parking Fees 643.86 25.00

5200 Committed-Fuel Flowage Fees 14,058.14 15,158.53

5201 Committed-Jet Fuel Tax 1,676.55 887.78

5300 Class II FBO Fees 7,800.00 5,250.00

5402 Open House Income 3,250.00 850.00

5404 Rock Materials Sales 62,338.86 77,451.29

5500 Interest Income 84,887.15 33,450.74

5915 Sales 1,290.00

5998 Terminal Rental 400.00

Total Income $875,474.85 $752,634.35

GROSS PROFIT $875,474.85 $752,634.35

Expenses

6019 Charitable Contribution 2,040.75 597.00

6165 Job Supplies 48.14 129.73

6169 Taxes & Licenses 280.00 3.00

6300 Operating Expenses

6000 Airport Engineering 3,000.00

6130 Dues 1,685.00 325.00

6135 Memberships 95.00 325.00

6136 Registration 250.00

6137 Conferences 785.00

6190 Office Expence-PC Software 5,246.20 429.42

6200 Office Expenses -PC Hardware 154.96 1,101.57

6211 Meals and Entertainment 889.06 785.67

6218 Marketing and Website 1,526.98 1,507.00

6218A Legal Notices 1,576.88



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Profit and Loss Comparison

July 2023 - May 2024

Accrual Basis  Friday, June 14, 2024 12:41 PM GMT-07:00   2/4

TOTAL

JUL 2023 - MAY 2024 JUL 2022 - MAY 2023 (PY)

6280 Open House Expense 1,229.51 10.97

6369 Travel 512.96

Total 6300 Operating Expenses 15,124.67 6,311.51

6301 Utilities

6238 Stormwater Discharge Permit 4.06 1,000.00

6302 Phone &  Internet 3,370.51 2,772.43

6303 Electric 14,947.11 11,183.40

6304 Gas 1,133.82 1,225.34

6305 Water 2,392.72 2,233.24

6306 Carson City Landfill 1,152.35 710.83

Total 6301 Utilities 23,000.57 19,125.24

6308 Office Expenses and Supplies 1,701.95 882.31

6309 Legal 36,180.00 69,453.16

6310 Security 3,595.90 3,825.77

6311 CCAA printing 428.08 226.75

6312 Data Storage 562.66 416.78

6313 Insurance 7,784.00 3,095.00

6314 Auditing 26,103.75 26,223.50

6314A Accounting/Bullis 16,595.00 17,556.00

6314B Accounting/Tmcdbooks 9,760.00 4,765.00

6315 Contract Services/Appraisals 7,715.00

6316 Bank Charges/Square Chgs 627.36 273.66

6317 Airport Equipment Maintenance 17,903.73 19,221.63

6317.5 AWOS III Service Charges 7,464.90 14,461.81

6318 Facility Maintenance 6,588.72 8,780.91

6318.5 2025 Arrowhead Dr 1,586.68

Total 6318 Facility Maintenance 6,588.72 10,367.59

6319 Airfield Maintenance 27,196.35 10,916.56

6319.5 Gate Maintenance 3,009.89 22.01

6350 Labor Expense

6351 Salaries 196,040.60 121,988.15

6351.5 Overtime Budget (Airfield) 1,080.00 2,251.81

6352 Healthcare 39,304.29 32,583.32

6353 PERS Retirement Contribution 70,115.59 27,031.34

6354 Nevada Payroll 1,248.50 1,036.25

6355 Workers Compensation 4,638.15 4,434.52

6363 Voya/Deferred Comp 420.00

6476 Uniforms 1,583.98 1,135.21

Total 6350 Labor Expense 314,431.11 190,460.60



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Profit and Loss Comparison

July 2023 - May 2024

Accrual Basis  Friday, June 14, 2024 12:41 PM GMT-07:00   3/4

TOTAL

JUL 2023 - MAY 2024 JUL 2022 - MAY 2023 (PY)

6444 Obsolete-Advertising & Marketing (deleted) 150.75

6600 Bad Debt Transaction 1,650.00 1,650.00

9100 Interest Expense 527.98 553.07

QuickBooks Payments Fees 105.28

Total Expenses $522,710.79 $408,403.43

NET OPERATING INCOME $352,764.06 $344,230.92

Other Income

5001 NDOT Grant Reimbursement 19,722.00

5005 KCXP Avoidance of Lease Termination N/R Deposit 25,000.00

FAA AIP Grant Revenue

6035 AIP #36  Construct SRE Building

6035.2 6035 AIP #36  Construct SRE Building Expense -12,470.00

Total 6035 AIP #36  Construct SRE Building -12,470.00

6036 AIP #37  Acquire Snow Removal Equipment 225.00 225.00

6036.2 AIP #37 Acquire Snow Removal Equipment Expense -225.00 -225.00

Total 6036 AIP #37  Acquire Snow Removal Equipment 0.00 0.00

6037 AIP #38  Install Approach Lighting Phase I 25,796.00 0.00

6040 AIP 41 - Relocate AWOS 8,193.00

6040.1 AIP 41 - Relocate AWOS Revenue 19,722.00 21,741.00

6040.2 AIP 41 - Relocate AWOS Expenses -23,191.30

6041 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF -3,000.00

6041.1 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF Rev 98,035.37 319,875.94

6041.2 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF Expense -50,755.00 -291,592.50

Total 6041 AIP #42 Approach Lighting System Phase 2 PAPI and MALSF 47,280.37 25,283.44

6042 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF

6042.1 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF Revenue 60,817.97

6042.2 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF Expense -65,110.00

Total 6042 AIP #43 Approach Lighting System Phase 3 PAPI and MALSF -4,292.03

6044 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building

6044.1 6044 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building Revenue 24,788.43

6044.2 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building Expense -67,876.50

Total 6044 AIP #44 SRE Construct Auxiliary Building -43,088.07

Total FAA AIP Grant Revenue 32,948.27 32,026.14

Total Other Income $52,670.27 $57,026.14

Other Expenses

6062.2 AIP #33 Perimeter Fence Design Expense -54,850.00

6415 Carson City Airport Sign 16,350.00



Carson City Airport Authority-2
Profit and Loss Comparison

July 2023 - May 2024

Accrual Basis  Friday, June 14, 2024 12:41 PM GMT-07:00   4/4

TOTAL

JUL 2023 - MAY 2024 JUL 2022 - MAY 2023 (PY)

CCAA Funded Capital Projects

6400 Capital Project

6418 FOD Boss Purchase 6,949.00

Total 6400 Capital Project 6,949.00

6410 Bobcat w/Attachments 82,121.70

6412 Terminal Entrance Hardscape 3,659.50

6413 Taxiway Sign Panels 9,719.51 14,188.30

6414 Terminal Building Architectural Renderings 12,892.25 8,107.50

6416 New Terminal Door Improvements with Access Control 7,556.24 4,953.82

6417 Aggregate To Improve Safety Areas (500 ft Test Area) 65,167.22 4,936.80

Total CCAA Funded Capital Projects 105,943.72 114,308.12

Total Other Expenses $105,943.72 $75,808.12

NET OTHER INCOME $ -53,273.45 $ -18,781.98

NET INCOME $299,490.61 $325,448.94


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes
	G-1
	H-1
	Manager's Report
	Treasurer's Report

